ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COMM TTEE
March 1, 2012
8:09 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE( S) :

Comm ssi on on Human Ri ghts

Christa Bruce - Ketchi kan, Al aska
Joann Hol mes - Kodi ak, Al aska
Joyce Skafl estad - Hoonah, Al aska
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Parole

M chael Stark - Juneau, Al aska
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Per sonnel Board

Al fred Tamagni, Sr. - Anchorage, Al aska
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Al aska Police Standards Counci

@Qust af Sandahl - Kenai, Al aska
Brad Reich - Kiana, Al aska
Jam e Sunderl and - Unal aska, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1-

March 1,

2012



Shel don Schmtt - Sitka, Al aska
Ronal d F. Taylor - Anchorage, Al aska

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

CHRI STA BRUCE, Appoi nt ee

State Comm ssion for Human Rights

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State
Conmi ssion for Human Ri ghts.

JOANN HOLMES, Appoi ntee

State Conm ssion for Human Ri ghts

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State
Conmi ssion for Human Ri ghts.

JOYCE SKAFLESTAD, Appoi ntee

State Human Ri ghts Comm ssi on

Hoonah, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State Human
Ri ghts Conmm ssi on.

M CHAEL STARK, Appoi ntee

Board of Parol e

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Par ol e.

ALFRED TAMAGNI, SR, Appointee

St ate Personnel Board

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State
per sonnel Board.

GUSTAF SANDAHL, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Police Standards Council

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Police
St andards Counci | (APSC).

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 1, 2012



KELLY ALZAHARNA, Executive Director

Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nformation during t he
confirmation hearing for the appointees to the Al aska Police
St andards Counci| (APSC).

BRAD REI CH, Appoi ntee

Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)

Ki ana, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the APSC.

JAM E SUNDERLAND, Appoi ntee

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Council (APSC)

Unal aska, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the APSC.

SHELDON SCHM TT, Appoi ntee

Al aska Police Standards Counci l

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the APSC.

RONALD TAYLOR, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the APSC.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:09:18 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:09 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton,
and Lynn were present at the call to order. Represent ati ves
Johansen, G uenberg, and Petersen arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S):  State Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts

8:11: 08 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was the
confirmation hearing for the appointees to the State Commi ssion
for Human Ri ghts.

8:11:31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 1, 2012



CHRI STA BRUCE, Appointee, State Commission for Hunan Rights,
said she is a long-tine Al askan who understands and val ues both
what it nmeans to be a citizen and the obligation to serve. She
said she would like to be involved in the process of ensuring
that people are treated fairly under the law and the Al aska
Constitution. She said she is happy to report that nenbers of
the comm ssion are available to speak directly to nenbers of the
public. M. Bruce stated that it would be an honor to serve on
t he comm ssi on.

8:15: 58 AM
JOANN HOLMES, Appointee, State Conmission for Human Rights,

offered a brief personal history. She said her work background
in Alaska Native Regional nonprofit organizations has provided

her W th experience in pl anni ng, goal setting, and
adm nistrating activities and work plans. She listed sonme of
her work experience, including having served on the Al aska
Conmi ssi on on Judici al Conduct , the Alaska  Sentencing
Comm ssion, and former Governor Egan's [Model Children's Code]
Task Force. She said both her work and vol unteer background

give her a great deal of experience in devel oping work plans and
providing |eadership, and she said she 1looks forward to
continuing her service on the State Conm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

8:17:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed concern that cases have
| anguished in front of the commission, and he nentioned an
audi t . In response to the chair, he said he does not know if
the concern has anything to do wth the present nom nee.

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that "these questions” have
nothing to do with the current nom nees.

8:20: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Holnes if she thinks she would
have any problem being able to adjudicate or inpartially
consider any discrimnation cases that would conme before the
commi ssi on.

M5. HOLMES answered no. Regarding the audit nentioned by
Representati ve Guenberg, she said she is fully aware of the
content of the audit and thinks that "it didn't sound real
good. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the role of the comm ssion needs to
be fully enact ed.

8:22:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his staff prepared a |list of
guestions - [included in the conmttee packet] - in response to
the aforenmentioned audit, and he suggested that reading the |ist
may give commttee nmenbers ideas for questions they would |ike
to ask the individual appointees. In response to the chair, he
said the audit was of the State Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts and
was conducted on Cctober 10, 2011.

8:24: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks the conmttee needs
ascertain if the [appointees] are aware of the audit and are
willing to inplement the recomrendati ons.

8: 25: 03 AM

JOYCE SKAFLESTAD, Appointee, State Human Ri ghts Comm ssion, said
she has been nomnated to fill a public seat on the conm ssion.
She referred to her resune [included in the commttee packet]
and listed skills she possesses that pertain to work on the
commi ssion. She said her nobst recent enploynent as a magistrate
in the Alaska Court System has provided her with a working
knowl edge of Al aska statutes and regul ations, an understanding
of the inportance of the tinely resolution of cases, and

opportunities to pay attention to detail. She stated her belief
that as a mmgistrate, her primary goal was to ensure that
defendants and litigants comng before the court wunderstood

their rights and responsibilities in the process of the court
system and to nmake infornmed decisions based on the law and

evi dence present ed. She said she can carry these principles
over to serving on the comm ssion. She stated her belief that
her purpose in |life is to serve, and she welcones the

opportunity to serve the State of Al aska. Ms. Skafl estad said
she is not famliar with the nentioned audit, but would be
willing to read it and would be wlling to put forth the
recommendati ons that are enconpassed in it.

8:26: 48 AM
IVS. SKAFLESTAD, in response to Representative G uenberg,

confirmed it is her first appointnment to the conm ssion. In
response to followup questions, she offered further details

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2012



related to her resune and the types of cases and trials she
handl ed.

8:29:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he cannot recall any ot her
appointees to the comm ssion who had judicial experience, and he
thinks M. Skaflestad's background wll be helpful to the
commi Sssi on.

8:31:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmations of
Christa Bruce, JoAnn Hol nes, Joyce Skafl estad, appointees to the
State Conmission For Human Rights, to the joint session for
consideration. There being no objection, the confirmations were
advanced.

8:31:40 AM

The conmmttee took an at-ease from8:32 a.m to 8:33 a.m

Board of Parol e

8:33: 36 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the next order of business was the
confirmation hearing for the appointees to the Board of Parole.

8:33:49 AM

M CHAEL STARK, Appointee, Board of Parole, said he has served on
the board for two five-year terns, and this nomnation is for a
third term He offered a brief work history, including that he
worked for the Ofice of the Attorney General as |ead counci
for the Departnent of Corrections and the Board of Parole. He
related that the menbership of the Board of Parole elects its
own vice chair, a position he said he has held for the past six
to seven years. He said it is an honor to serve on the board,
and he offered to answer questions.

8:34:59 AM
MR. STARK, in response to Chair Lynn, said two-thirds of the
board's work is in revocation hearings and only one-third of its

work is in discretionary hearings. He said the nost chall enging
aspect of serving on the board is meking decisions related to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2012



t hose who have commtted the nobst serious offenses. He said the
board's nunber one concern is public safety, and its secondary
concern is the rehabilitation of the offender; the board nust
bal ance those interests.

8:36: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER thanked M. Stark for his service to the
st ate.

MR. STARK said there are enough success stories to nmake the job
wor t hwhi | e.

8:37:20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG related his |ong association with M.
Stark, posited that those who serve a long tine provided
important "institutional nenory," and he stated his support of
M. Stark's appointnent.

8:40:18 AM

MR. STARK, in response to Representative Johansen, said there
are set conditions of parole, specific to the offender, which
are based on the person's crimnal history, for exanple, whether
the person is a substance abuser, has nental health issues, or
is a sex offender. He said there are prograns that give
offenders the tools to help prevent a repeat of the offenses.
He said those who conmit thenselves to the prograns have the
best Iikelihood of success.

8:41:41 AM

MR. STARK, in response to Representative Seaton, said that other
than working closely with the Departnment of Corrections, the
board has little influence over what happens before offenders
are release on mandatory parole. He tal ked about i ndividual
assessnment and following the offender as he/she nobves out into
the community, and he said there is a science that can be
pursued to lessen the cost to society of sone of the costs of
corrections and to mnimze recidivism

8:46: 43 AM
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

8:47: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation of
M chael Stark, appointee to the Board of Parole, to the joint
session for consideration. There being no objection, the
confirmati on was advanced.

8:47:09 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from8:47 a.m to 8:49 a.m

Per sonnel Board

8:48: 55 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was the
confirmation hearing for the appointee to the Personnel Board.

8:49: 02 AM

ALFRED TAMAGNI, SR, Appointee, State Personnel Board, as
appointee to the State Personnel Board, said he has served on

the board for the past six years and wuld Iike to be
reappoi nted and confirned. He tal ked about changes made to the
board since his service on it, including a training manual, put

together with the Ofice of the Attorney Ceneral, for all ethics
supervisors in state agencies, public corporations, boards, and

commi ssi ons. He said changes were also nade to streanline the
case wor Kkl oad. In response to the chair, he said the nunber of
cases ranges from two to twenty. He said the board handles

conplaints related to public officials, whereas other conplaints
are handled by the Ofice of the Attorney General, which keeps
the board apprised of its decisions. He offered further
details. He provided response to questions about how the board
handl es confidentiality.

8:58:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he has seen M. Tanagni, Sr., on
television, and said the appointee appears to be active in the
community and public service. He opined that M. Tamagni, Sr.
is exactly the type of person for this position, and he thanked
himfor putting his nane forward again.

9:00: 44 AM

MR. TAMAGNI, SR, responding to further questions fromthe chair
regardi ng confidentiality, said the board follows the |aw.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2012



9:01: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed appreciation for M. Tanagni
Sr.'s willingness to serve on the board.

MR. TAMAGNI, SR, in response to Representative Guenberg, said
he thinks the total of three people who serve on the board is
enough, and he addressed the concern about harassnent by
mul ti pl e conplaints. He said he has a problem with the noney
that tax payers put forth for conplaints that have no basis from
the start. He said he thinks this issue should be studied. He
offered further details. In response to a followup question,
he stated his belief that someone who has had a conplaint filed
against himher and has had to hire an attorney, who 1is
subsequently found not guilty of the charge, should be
rei mbursed the attorney fees by the state.

9:08: 24 AM

MR  TAMAGNI, SR, in response to the <chair, said board
attendance has not been a problem and he reviewed the process
of the board. In response to Representative Guenberg, he
reviewed that the board handl es conpl aints agai nst the executive
br anch. In response to Chair Lynn, he addressed the issue of
conflict of interest. He said in a case where there is a

conplaint against the governor, and the board has a list of
three attorneys, an attorney with a relationship wth the
governor or governor's staff should recuse hinifherself.

9:13:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to advance the confirmation of
Al fred Tamagni, Sr., appointee to the Personnel Board, to the
joint session for consideration. There being no objection, the
confirmati on was advanced.

9:14: 05 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from9:14 a.m to 9:16 a.m

Al aska Police Standards Counci

9:16: 20 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 1, 2012



CHAI R LYNN announced that the |ast order of business was the
confirmation hearing for the appointees to the Al aska Police
St andards Counci | .

9:16: 49 AM

GUSTAF SANDAHL, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council,
after a brief account of his education and enploynent
background, noted that he has served on several comunity and
| aw enforcenent boards and conmmittees. He related that he is a
pol ygraph exam ner with experience doing both crimnal and pre-
enpl oyment exam nations, which is a job that requires trust from
others and a roll that sharpens a person's perspective regarding
the hiring standards for police officers. He stated that he
brings over 16 years of |law enforcenent experience to the
council, and said he has high expectations for the standards,
conduct, and proficiency of Kenai's officers, and he said he
will bring that same expectation to the council. He stated that
after nine years as a supervisor, he has dealt with a nunber of
personnel issues and is confortable with the role he will play
on the council. He said he | ooks at cases objectively and will
do his part to maintain the standards and hold officers
account abl e. He related that he has been Qutside for training
with officers fromall over the world, as well as attending the
FBI National Acadeny, and he opined that Al aska |aw enforcenent

has sonme of the nobst ethical l|aw enforcenment officers. He
expressed his willingness to volunteer tine on the council.

9: 20: 53 AM

MR. SANDAHL, in response to the chair, offered further

information related to pol ygraph tests, and opined that the test
is a valuable and reliable tool used by the police departnent.

9:23:41 AM
MR. SANDAHL, in response to Representative G uenberg, reviewed
the fluctuations in nunbers of officers serving on the Cty of

Kenai Police Departnent over the years.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renarked that M. Sandahl sounds 1ike
he is well-qualified.

9:25: 05 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 1, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern about [police and public
safety officers] authorized to carry weapons who have conplaints
agai nst themthat are kept confidential. He related an exanple.

MR. SANDAHL said the City of Kenai Police Departnent is ethica

in investigating its own, and would investigate and hold the
officer in question fully accountable. However, until charged

that information is not going to be rel eased.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Sandahl how the APSC would
handl e nul tiple conplaints regardi ng abuse of power.

MR. SANDAHL said he is not sure how public those records are
for exanple, in a case where the officer had been term nated but
not crimnally charged.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated his concern for a balance
between confidentiality of disciplinary action and public
awar eness.

9:32: 30 AM

KELLY ALZAHARNA, Executive Director, Al aska Police Standards
Counci | (APSCO) , offered further information related to
di sciplinary action. She said problenms wthin a police

department are handled internally, and the APSC may or nay not
get notice of it, depending on the severity or the outcone. The
council can start an independent investigation when it hears of
an incident through, for exanple, citizen conplaints.

9:34: 25 AM

BRAD REI CH, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council (APSC),
told the conmttee that he is the current mayor of Kiana,
Al aska, and serves on several boards and on the [ Northwest
Arctic Borough] Public Safety Conmm ssion. He said he |ooks
forward to serving on the APSC.

9: 36: 08 AM

JAM E SUNDERLAND, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Counci

(APSC), relayed that has been in |law enforcenent for just over
16 years, the last 4.5 of which he has served as the director of
Public Safety and the Chief of Police in Unalaska, in Dutch
Har bor . He said he also serves on the State Enmergency Response
Comm ssi on. He shared his education experience, noting that he
is a graduate of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2012



Nat i onal Academy. He expressed concern about the certifications
of both police and corrections officers, and said he | ooks
forward to serving on the council. He indicated that he could
bring a rural, non-road system perspective to [the council].

9:38: 14 AM

SHELDON SCHM TT, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council,
said he has served on the APSC since 2008, and he was recently
el ected to chair the council. He said he has worked in |aw
enforcement for 17 years, for the past 5 years as chief of
police in Sitka. He said he wants to continue to serve on the

counci | . In response to Representative G uenberg, he said he
has ideas about the future of the ~council and -current
legislation related to the council to speak about at another
tine.

9:41:21 AM

RONALD TAYLOR, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council
(APSC), stated that he is currently the director of the D vision
of Probation and Parole, within the Departnent of Corrections.
He related that fornerly, he served as the executive director
for the Board of Parole for three years, and spent 18 years as
t he program manager and probation officer for the Al cohol Safety
Action Program (ASAP). He said the O fender Managenent Plan, to
which M. Stark alluded, follows a person throughout the system
and is used by "all" to ensure people's needs and risk factors
are being addressed. In response to Chair Lynn, he offered a
brief summary of the purpose of the APSC.

9:45: 00 AM

MR. TAYLOR, in response to Representative Petersen, said he
coul d not speak to recommendations regarding forensic testing at
this tinme. 1In response to Representative Seaton and Chair Lynn,
he offered information regarding the public's awareness of how
conplaints are addressed and now the APSC i s invol ved.

9:48: 51 AM

MS. ALZAHARNA of fered further details to M. Taylor's response.
9:51: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN observed that nost of the neeting had
been spent asking about the function of the various boards and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 1, 2012



councils, and he indicated that should be done in overviews. He
suggested that instead the commttee focus its questions on
asking the individual appointees what they can bring to the
counci | . He concluded by stating his support of "the
applicant.”

9:52:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmations of
Gustaf Sandahl, Brad Reich, Jam e Sunderland, Sheldon Schmtt,
and Ronald Taylor, appointees to the Al aska Police Standards
Council, to the joint session for consideration. There being no
obj ection, the confirmations were advanced.

9:53:36 AM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:54
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 1, 2012



